
Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
1 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

The Meeting of the Board of Public Works of the City of Onalaska was called to order at 6:30 1 

p.m. on Tuesday, January 7, 2014.  It was noted that the meeting had been announced and a 2 

notice posted at City Hall. 3 

 4 

Roll call was taken with the following members present:  Mayor Joe Chilsen, Ald. Jim Bialecki, 5 

Ald. Jack Pogreba, City Engineer Jarrod Holter, Financial Services Director/Treasurer Fred 6 

Buehler 7 

 8 

Also Present:  Police Chief Jeff Trotnic, Assistant City Engineer Kevin Schubert 9 

 10 

Item 2 – Approval of minutes from previous meeting 11 

 12 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Jarrod, to approve the minutes from the previous meeting as 13 

printed and on file in the City Clerk’s Office. 14 

 15 

On voice vote, motion carried. 16 

 17 

Item 3 – Public Input (limited to 3 minutes/individual) 18 

 19 

Ald. Pogreba called three times for anyone wishing to provide public input and closed that 20 

portion of the meeting. 21 

 22 

Consideration and possible action on the following items: 23 

 24 

Item 4 – Review and consideration of costs associated with, notification of and issues 25 

related to choice of automated cart size for refuse and recycling collection 26 

 27 

Jarrod noted board members’ packets contained the automatic cart size change timeline and said 28 

it will serve as a guideline for the upcoming automatic cart exchange.  The timeline is as follows: 29 

 30 

• January 7:  Board of Public Works approval of notification and costs 31 

• January 14:  Common Council approval of notification and costs 32 

• February 17:  Notification of cart size choice sent to property owners 33 

• April 2:  Deadline for property owners to notify city of request for alternate cart size 34 

• Mid-April:  Cart order placed 35 

• First week of June:  Carts delivered 36 

 37 

Jarrod distributed a copy of the proposed notification to the City of Onalaska’s residents.  The 38 

notification, which will be mailed on card stock, would include a letter and a postcard that can be 39 

returned by citizens wishing to obtain either a larger or smaller cart for refuse and/or recycling.  40 

Jarrod said, “We wanted to make this as easy as we could for the residents, so we have added a 41 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
2 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

business reply mail in the back so they won’t be charged any postage. … One thing we are going 42 

to change on here is we are going to add that they can be dropped off at City Hall also.  They 43 

would not have to be mailed.” 44 

 45 

Fred stated that while residents may make a choice by April 2, the City of Onalaska must be 46 

notified no later than April 2.  Fred suggested including verbiage stating the city must receive 47 

residents’ postcards either on or before April 2. 48 

 49 

Ald. Pogreba agreed with Fred, stating, “I thought of that when I read through here, too.  We 50 

need to have an answer by 5 o’clock [on April 2], so we need to receive it by 5 o’clock that day.  51 

They might mail it two days before, but if it goes up to Minneapolis and gets back here we might 52 

not receive it [by the deadline].” 53 

 54 

In response to a question by Mayor Chilsen, Jarrod said the Common Council had determined 55 

that April 2 would be the deadline. 56 

 57 

Mayor Chilsen suggested moving up the deadline by one week. 58 

 59 

Fred noted that April 2 was chosen as the deadline to accommodate individuals who live in the 60 

southern part of the United States during the winter months. 61 

 62 

Mayor Chilsen said he does not want the city to encounter any difficulties related to the deadline. 63 

 64 

Fred expressed reservations over moving up the deadline by one week to March 26 because the 65 

Common Council had established April 2 as the deadline. 66 

 67 

Jarrod assured the board that the notifications will clearly state the postcard must be received by 68 

April 2. 69 

 70 

In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said the notifications will be First-Class Mail and 71 

should arrive at City Hall in a timely manner. 72 

 73 

Jarrod noted Harter’s Quick Clean-Up had submitted proposed pricing for the cart change-out 74 

and acknowledged that he does not know how many citizens will request new carts.  Jarrod noted 75 

the city had delivered one refuse and one recycling cart to 6,100 residential units and said there is 76 

the assumption that 10 percent of the city’s citizens will request a 35-gallon cart and 15 percent 77 

will request a 95-gallon cart.  Jarrod said this would be 25 percent of the total carts and noted 78 

costs will rise proportionately if the percentage of citizens wishing to obtain a new cart is greater 79 

than what is being assumed.  Jarrod said it still needs to be determined whether either Harter’s or 80 

the City of Onalaska will purchase the carts. 81 

 82 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
3 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

Jarrod referenced Option No. 1 in which Harter’s would purchase the carts: 83 

 84 

• 35-gallon carts at $68 each = $82,960 85 

• 95-gallon carts at $67 each = $122,610 86 

• Delivery at $10 each = $30,500 87 

• Resale of existing carts at $10 each = -($30,500) 88 

• Total = $205,570 89 

 90 

Jarrod referenced Option No. 2 in which the City of Onalaska would purchase the carts: 91 

 92 

• 35-gallon carts at $55 each = $67,100 93 

• 95-gallon carts at $59 each = $107,970 94 

• Delivery = $30,500 95 

• Resale of existing carts at $14 each (approximately 160 hours of city staff time) = 96 

-($42,700) 97 

• Total = $162,870 98 

 99 

Jarrod said, “Those numbers are preliminary.  Once we get the actual numbers of cards back 100 

we’ll have a better idea to give a firm number. … We do not, in my mind, have to take any 101 

action on that tonight.  But I wanted to get it [out there] so we can be discussing it over the next 102 

two months.  The only thing I’m really requesting tonight is that we approve the handout so that 103 

way we can get ready to mail it – that and the timeline.” 104 

 105 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to approve both the timeline and the 106 

notification related to choice of automated cart size for refuse and recycling collection, with the 107 

alteration stating the postcard must be received by April 2. 108 

 109 

Fred referenced the letter that will be included in the notification and suggested including 110 

verbiage that states June 2014 is the estimated date for the cart change-out. 111 

 112 

Jarrod noted that the word “anticipated” is included in the letter. 113 

 114 

On voice vote, motion carried. 115 

 116 

Item 5 – Review and consideration of future well site at Irving Pertzsch school 117 

 118 

Jarrod referenced a map of Irving Pertzsch Elementary included in board members’ packets that 119 

includes a highlighted 100-by-100 foot square site the city had retained for a future well site 120 

when the land that had once included the city’s pool prior to the construction of the Aquatic 121 

Center was transferred to the school.  Jarrod said a proposed new gymnasium, if it is constructed, 122 

would be located on the proposed well site and noted he had labeled a new well site located on 123 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
4 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

the southeast corner of the area.  Jarrod noted the School District of Onalaska approves of the 124 

location and said, “If we would ever put a well on that site, 200 feet isn’t going to make a big 125 

difference for us.” 126 

 127 

Ald. Pogreba asked if the new proposed site for the well is slightly smaller than the original 128 

proposed site. 129 

 130 

Jarrod noted he had not drawn the new site exactly to scale on the map and said the city would 131 

retain the same square footage of 100-by-100 feet.  Jarrod also noted there is a public alley 132 

coming off 8th Avenue South and said there is public right-of-way access. 133 

 134 

Fred asked if the well must be constructed a certain distance from the school as chemicals would 135 

be present. 136 

 137 

Jarrod said, “If we would ever build a new well at that proposed site we would probably not use 138 

gas chlorine.  There are other [substances] we could use because we wouldn’t want the chlorine 139 

gas that close to the school.  If we had to we’d use a different substance for ensuring the water 140 

was clean when we distributed it.” 141 

 142 

Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Bialecki, to allow the future well site at Irving Pertzsch 143 

Elementary School to be relocated to the southeast corner as shown on the map provided to the 144 

Board of Public Works. 145 

 146 

Ald. Bialecki said he is seconding this motion with the understanding that this approval is only 147 

good if the School District of Onalaska’s proposed plan to construct a new gymnasium at Irving 148 

Pertzsch proceeds after the February 23 building referendum.  The proposed well would be 149 

constructed at the original site if the gymnasium is not constructed. 150 

 151 

On voice vote, motion carried. 152 

 153 

Item 6 – Review and consideration of State/Municipal agreement for Safe Routes to School 154 

project 155 

 156 

Jarrod noted this will allocate funds that were to be utilized in design and State of Wisconsin 157 

review toward the construction of the project.  Jarrod said this is the only alteration in the 158 

agreement. 159 

 160 

Motion by Jarrod, second by Ald. Bialecki, to approve the revised Safe Routes to School 161 

State/Municipal agreement, Revision No. 3, dated November 21, 2013. 162 

 163 

On voice vote, motion carried. 164 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
5 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

 165 

Item 7 – Review and consideration of snowmobile route through City 166 

 167 

Jarrod noted there are representatives from the Coulee Snowdrifters Snowmobile Club in 168 

attendance this evening who are willing to answer questions.  Jarrod referenced a map on display 169 

for board members and noted the snowmobile trail presently is located behind the Old City Shop 170 

and proceeds to 2nd Avenue Southwest.  The trail used to proceed along the Edwards Mini 171 

Storage area and beneath State Trunk Highway 35 along the railroad tracks.  Jarrod noted that 172 

when the Coulee Snowdrifters were placing their trail markers this past autumn club members 173 

received a call from railroad representatives who stated they did not want the club to utilize the 174 

underpass at STH 35.  Coulee Snowdrifters representatives met with Burlington Northern 175 

representatives in an attempt to arrive at a resolution, but none was reached.  Jarrod said the 176 

Coulee Snowdrifters have explored alternatives, including a “mid-block” crossing and coming 177 

off the alleyway by 2nd Avenue Southwest.  However, because these are not viable alternatives 178 

the Coulee Snowdrifters is looking at crossing the lighted intersection.  This would mean coming 179 

up Ash Street, crossing the intersection and proceeding down the trail.  Jarrod noted the City of 180 

Onalaska has maintenance jurisdiction to 2nd Avenue Southwest, while the Wisconsin 181 

Department of Transportation has maintenance jurisdiction from 2nd Avenue Southwest to 182 

Interstate 90 and controls the signal light at the intersection. 183 

 184 

Jarrod said, “The club has been put in a bad position.  This happened basically at the last hour.  185 

They’re still trying to work with the railroad to find a solution and work that way, but for the rest 186 

of this season the snowmobile club is requesting the use of Ash Street coming up to the light and 187 

then going back on and connecting to trail view this route.” 188 

 189 

Ald. Pogreba and Jarrod invited Coulee Snowdrifters representative Ron Kendhammer to address 190 

the board. 191 

 192 

Ron stated Burlington Northern’s decision to deny access to the underpass at STH 35 took club 193 

members by surprise. 194 

 195 

Ald. Pogreba noted snowmobile riders would be travelling on a paved street and also noted they 196 

would be bringing snow into the lane of traffic.  Ald. Pogreba said he is concerned about ice 197 

buildup on the street and wear and tear on the pavement.  Ald. Pogreba said, “For the one year 198 

and until we find an alternative, I’m not against it but I’m concerned.” 199 

 200 

Ron said he agrees with Ald. Pogreba and stated club members are not in favor of having to 201 

encounter traffic.  Ron said, “We feel the safest route was the way we had been going, but 202 

there’s no negotiating.  And after all, they [Burlington Northern] are the landowners.  If they 203 

don’t want us, that’s the way it has to be – and of course, the same way with this. … I want to 204 

make this real clear.  As far as this trail length through Onalaska, as far as the club members 205 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
6 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

themselves and most of the snowmobilers from this area, we’re not terribly concerned about it.  I 206 

seldom make use of that route myself because it’s running on the dry streets.  If I’m going to 207 

Trempealeau or Arcadia I’ll typically trailer over to Midway and leave from there, as most of my 208 

associates to do.  Likewise with those who live on the north end, they’ll trailer over to the 209 

County B parking lot.” 210 

 211 

Ron noted the section in question is a critical link for individuals from out of the area because 212 

they do not have the option of riding their snowmobiles to the City of Onalaska and take a trailer 213 

to County Trunk Highway B.  Ron said, “We’re just looking to do our share of the trail work 214 

throughout the State of Wisconsin.  If every club had an issue like this and had to shut down a 215 

connecting link of their trail system we wouldn’t have much of a trail system in the State of 216 

Wisconsin.  We’re quite proud of what we have here, and we’d like to do our share.  That’s why 217 

we do it more than anything – just to make it accessible for other snowmobilers.” 218 

 219 

Mayor Chilsen stated, “I think in the short run we have to make this happen and then we have to 220 

figure out something.  I think we have to do this in good faith.  The railroad has thrown you a 221 

curveball and we have to figure out how to fix it because that’s the best thing for everybody 222 

concerned.  I am vehemently pushing that we approve this tonight.” 223 

 224 

Ron said he had implored Burlington Northern officials to allow the club to retain access this 225 

winter, adding he also had told the railroad officials they had left the club in a precarious 226 

position.  Ron said, “This would be the easiest way to get through the winter.” 227 

 228 

Jarrod noted that the club will need to obtain Wisconsin DOT approval to cross in the desired 229 

location because the traffic light is not owned by the City of Onalaska.  Jarrod said the Board of 230 

Public Works may approve travel up Ash Street and reconnecting with the trail.  However, the 231 

Wisconsin DOT also will need to grant its approval. 232 

 233 

Ron said, “In our own minds we have a bit of an issue with the whole situation because it’s not a 234 

handy situation to be able to mark it properly just because of all the traffic and having to run on 235 

the street.  It is quite convenient for us to make that change because it doesn’t amount to a lot of 236 

territory.  It’s just the fact that it’s going to be rather hard to mark just because of the situation at 237 

hand.  But if it becomes available to us we would certainly make use of it and do the best that we 238 

can in making it so that the snowmobilers can see where they’re supposed to go.” 239 

 240 

Police Chief Trotnic asked if anyone has discussed this matter with the Wisconsin DOT. 241 

 242 

An unidentified individual in the audience said someone has done so. 243 

 244 

Ald. Pogreba said documentation will need to be obtained through Jarrod. 245 

 246 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
7 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

Police Chief Trotnic stated, “The only thing from my perspective is we’re not opposed to it, but 247 

legality-wise making sure that we’re just not having to look the other way.  The only thing about 248 

ordinances is if we’re going to do this, they can actually drive on a highway but it has to be 249 

designated as a route and it has to be marked as a route.  That portion that they’re going to come 250 

up onto the roadway has to be designated as a snowmobile route and marked.  That way, we’re 251 

not having to just say we’re looking the other way.  They would have to follow it to a ‘T’.  That 252 

would actually enable the snowmobilers to just jump off there and use that Kwik Trip as a 253 

fueling point because they’re driving adjacent to it.  There’s already a point that they’d jump off 254 

for fuel at the [STH] 35 and Troy [Street] Kwik Trip, but they’re not violating anything because 255 

they can actually cross anything that’s under a five-lane roadway as long as they do it per state 256 

law.” 257 

 258 

In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, Jarrod said he needs to obtain City Attorney Sean 259 

O’Flaherty’s opinion on this matter prior to the January 14 Common Council meeting. 260 

 261 

In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Jarrod said the club marks the route and noted there is 262 

a snowmobile route sign along the route.  Jarrod also noted the sign is the official Wisconsin 263 

DOT sign for a snowmobile route. 264 

 265 

Ald. Bialecki asked if the potentially affected property owners have been notified of the change 266 

and noted any problems likely would occur due to snowmobilers from out of the area. 267 

 268 

Jarrod suggested it would be prudent to speak to representatives from Miller Quick Print and 269 

Dairy Queen. 270 

 271 

In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, the route along the old Pickle Factory would not be 272 

utilized, and also would not come up along Oak Avenue past the trailer park. 273 

 274 

Ald. Bialecki said he would be willing to refer this matter to the Common Council, but added he 275 

wishes to obtain written permission from the Wisconsin DOT. 276 

 277 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to refer the snowmobile route through the 278 

City of Onalaska to the Common Council for final review and approval. 279 

 280 

On voice vote, motion carried. 281 

   282 

Item 8 – Review and consideration of East Main Street project design 283 

 284 

Jarrod referenced a letter contained in board members’ packets drafted by Kevin and noted 285 

Kevin had informed all the property owners located along the project of the city’s plans.  Jarrod 286 

noted that East Main Street currently has four 11-foot lanes and said he is proposing to have two 287 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
8 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

11-foot wide lanes on each side of the street and add 14-foot center turn lane.  The existing 288 

boulevard, which is approximately 9 feet wide, would be narrowed.  Jarrod said a 3-foot 289 

boulevard would be maintained on the east side, and a 4-foot boulevard would be maintained on 290 

the west side.  Jarrod noted there are existing power poles on the west side and said they would 291 

not need to be moved. 292 

 293 

Jarrod said, “The road will be quite a bit wider.  We’re proposing 5 inches of asphalt and 15 294 

inches of rock underneath the roadway.” 295 

 296 

Jarrod referenced a map displaying the traffic markings once the project is completed and noted 297 

the project will begin along the concrete pavement near the off-ramp and the road will be 298 

replaced to Esther Drive.  Jarrod said no geometric improvements will be performed to the Green 299 

Coulee intersection, noting the possibility of installing a traffic signal has been explored.  300 

However, the entire intersection would need to be reconstructed, and the ramp would need to be 301 

realigned along with Green Coulee Road.  This project would cost approximately $3 million.  302 

Jarrod said the East Main Street reconstruction project would involve replacing the deteriorating 303 

pavement and attempting to add a center turn lane.  Jarrod said he believes adding a center turn 304 

lane will increase safety.  Jarrod acknowledged there will be instances where motorists turning 305 

left into Altra Federal Credit Union will have to go around a motorist turning left into Kwik Trip.  306 

However, Jarrod said constructing the turn lane will be an improvement over the current 307 

situation. 308 

 309 

Jarrod referenced two parcels on the map that have an adjoining parking lot.  The property line 310 

splits the parking lot, and there is no green space between the two parking areas.  Jarrod said he 311 

is proposing to shut off a driveway.  Both parcels still would have a driveway, and also would 312 

have interconnectivity.  Jarrod said he also is proposing constructing an island in the 14-foot 313 

center two-way left turn lane at Grand View Boulevard.  Another proposal is to reinstall an 314 

existing island at Coulee Golf Bowl and utilize pedestrian refuges. 315 

 316 

In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said construction will start at a specified spot on the 317 

map and proceed east. 318 

 319 

Fred expressed concern over constructing an island, noting swamp grass can be planted on the 320 

island.  This will create a blind spot for motorists who wish to turn. 321 

 322 

Jarrod said the proposed islands would be concrete islands and will have no vegetation. 323 

 324 

Jarrod referenced a site where he is proposing adding a high-capacity inlet.  Jarrod referenced an 325 

intersection that experiences flooding during heavy rainstorms.  Closing off the driveway will 326 

allow the installation of more inlet capacity in the location. 327 

 328 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
9 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

Ald. Pogreba inquired about the timeframe of moving the entrance to Green Coulee to line up 329 

with the ramp. 330 

 331 

Jarrod said the cost of repaving this area will be minor compared to what the intersection will 332 

cost.  Jarrod said undertaking such a project would result in the loss of only 300 feet of the 1,800 333 

feet that will be reconstructed.  Jarrod said the project is shown the five-year Capital 334 

Improvements Program and is listed at $3 million.  However, Jarrod said the project likely would 335 

cost nearly $4 million.  Jarrod said there currently is no concise design that would allow for a 336 

cost to be programmed into the Capital Improvements Budget.  Jarrod said it would be necessary 337 

to perform preliminary work, meet with a consultant or obtain traffic engineering expertise in an 338 

attempt to obtain a more accurate financial figure.  Jarrod said it would be necessary to find out 339 

what the Wisconsin DOT would need for ramp distances, moving the ramp and the traffic light, 340 

and installing a new traffic light and box culvert.  Jarrod said it also would be necessary to 341 

ascertain the impacts on right of way to Coulee Golf Bowl and Kwik Trip. 342 

 343 

Ald. Pogreba asked, “If we do it in five years, for example, the amount of time, money and 344 

engineering that we’re putting into that from the island to the lights is …?” 345 

 346 

Jarrod said, “I would say out of your $800,000 project cost you’re probably talking $75,000.  347 

And the pavement is getting to the condition that it won’t wait five years.” 348 

 349 

Jarrod referenced the map and the other end of the project, which is proceeding toward Esther 350 

Drive, and said he is proposing the construction of another island.  This will split the traffic with 351 

the center turn lane. 352 

 353 

Jarrod said a traffic control diagram outlining the traffic markings during the reconstruction 354 

project had been included in board members’ packets.  Jarrod said tighter timeframes will be 355 

placed on the project, noting he will inform the contractor the project must be completed during 356 

a specified timeframe before liquidated damages take effect.  Jarrod said each side of the road 357 

likely will take approximately three weeks to be reconstructed and noted the driveways along 358 

East Main Street are the only access points for the businesses along the road.  Jarrod estimated 359 

the Grand View Boulevard likely will be a “right-in, right-out” during the project.  Jarrod said an 360 

attempt will be made to maintain the left turn into Green Coulee.  However, the left-turn out will 361 

be closed down, thereby leaving a right-turn out.  Jarrod said it is possible there will be a three-362 

day period where there might be “right-in, right-out” at Green Coulee.  Jarrod said he is 363 

anticipating night work at the site, noting the project will be bid this way.  Jarrod said he believes 364 

the night work will benefit the public, and it also will benefit the contractor in the sense there 365 

will be increased safety.  Jarrod said automatic message boards will be bid out as part of the 366 

contract. 367 

 368 

In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Jarrod estimated approximately 3,500 vehicles per 369 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
10 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

day exit Green Coulee. 370 

 371 

Ald. Pogreba referenced the map that included the island before the turn near Esther Drive and 372 

noted a motorist traveling east to west on East Main Street will be in the traffic lane turning left.  373 

Ald. Pogreba asked if any consideration was given to moving this island. 374 

 375 

Jarrod said it likely would be difficult to have a left-turn lane without purchasing additional right 376 

of way or expanding. 377 

 378 

In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said the City of Onalaska has maintained the section of 379 

East Main Street leading up to Esther Drive since 1984.  Jarrod said the city assumed control of 380 

the road leading to State Trunk Highway 16 in 1999. 381 

 382 

Jarrod said he will explore the possibility of extending the center turn lane and suggested 383 

constructing a center turn lane at 21st Avenue. 384 

 385 

In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said he wanted to make the board aware of the 386 

construction timelines. 387 

 388 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to accept the report of the East Main Street 389 

project design as presented. 390 

 391 

On voice vote, motion carried. 392 

 393 

Item 9 – Review and consideration of Emerald Ash Borer Plan update 394 

 395 

Jarrod said that board members’ packets include the Emerald Ash Borer Plan that was approved 396 

in January 2008, as well as a memo from Land Use and Development Director Brea Grace 397 

noting the Emerald Ash Borer had been found within city limits.  Jarrod said Brea, 398 

Planner/Zoning Inspector Katie Meyer and Parks and Recreation Director Dan Wick all have 399 

been working on this matter.  Jarrod said he wants to see the Emerald Ash Borer Plan updated 400 

with additional public comment. 401 

 402 

Jarrod stated, “I think in January of 2008 when this plan was done we were trying to be 403 

proactive, but we really didn’t get a direction on where we wanted to go with the plan.  With 404 

that, part of what is included in the proposal that we included within the packet tonight is an 405 

ordinance update.  We really need to update our ordinance.  Since I’ve been here I don’t think 406 

our Urban Forestry Ordinance has been updated.  We want to update the Education Outreach 407 

Plans and what we’re going to replant and what those guidelines are, and our removal schedule 408 

as part of that plan update.” 409 

 410 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
11 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

Jarrod noted the plan would pertain solely to public boulevard trees and would not address 411 

private trees.  Jarrod said, “It would be addressed as part of the ordinance update as the decisions 412 

we would make as a city on where we want to move with the private trees that we find within the 413 

city on private property and how we’re going to handle them if we have one that dies and 414 

becomes a safety hazard.  Those will be addressed in the ordinance.  This plan mainly pertains to 415 

what we’re going to do with our boulevard trees that are ash, and the cemetery.  Those would be 416 

the two areas that would be part of the plan.” 417 

 418 

Jarrod noted there are more than 1,200 ash trees in the street boulevards and approximately 40 in 419 

the cemetery that need to be examined.  Jarrod said, “What we’re doing with this plan, and what 420 

we’re going forward with, is that any person that calls with an ash tree on private property [have 421 

been referred] to the professional arborists list to get guidance from.  We have not been trying to 422 

go on private property and give guidance; we’re trying to direct those people to get arborists to 423 

give them [advice] on what they think needs to be done and then if they need to have it removed 424 

they can remove it for them.  The Parks Department is handling their trees through the Park 425 

Board, and they are trying to treat some of the trees in the key park areas to slow down the 426 

Emerald Ash Borer.  With that, I think the evidence is that it eventually will get the tree, but it 427 

slows it down to try and let the other trees catch up in certain areas around park shelters and key 428 

fields and key buildings.  This is basically updating the plan that governs the boulevard trees and 429 

the cemetery trees.” 430 

 431 

Jarrod said $25,000 had been budgeted in the 2013 Capital Improvements Budget for Urban 432 

Forestry and said he is proposing that the plan update would originate from there.  Jarrod said, “I 433 

feel this is important because as the trees start dying we really want to have a plan.  La Crosse 434 

has taken a stance that they’re just going to cut every one of them down.  That will be a decision 435 

as part of the plan update that will have to be made by the board and Council on what direction 436 

we want to go with this.” 437 

 438 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Fred, to authorize staff, including Public Works and 439 

Planning, to proceed with updating the existing Emerald Ash Borer Plan.  This will include 440 

public input hearings to be held in March, and any and all changes would be presented to the 441 

Administrative and Judiciary Committee for an ordinance change. 442 

 443 

Jarrod said a forester could appear either at a Board of Public Works or Common Council 444 

meeting, and the cost would be $3,700. 445 

 446 

In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said staff consults with the Department of Natural 447 

Resources forester.  Jarrod said time constrains would prevent the forester and City staff from 448 

writing a plan. 449 

 450 

 451 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
12 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

In response to a question by Fred, Jarrod said Bluestem Forestry Consulting would update the 452 

plan and present it.  Jarrod said $3,100 has been budgeted for updating the plan, and $600 has 453 

been budgeted for a public meeting. 454 

 455 

On voice vote, motion carried. 456 

 457 

Item 10 – Review and consideration of repairs to bucket truck and funding options 458 

 459 

Jarrod reported that the city’s newly acquired bucket truck had been damaged by a vehicle in a 460 

public parking lot.  An Altec employee examined the damage to the bucket truck.  Jarrod said 461 

that while none of the repairs that are needed are due to the accident, the truck still needs to be 462 

certified.  Jarrod said repairs to the cables and chains are considered maintenance and noted 463 

certifying the truck will prove to be beneficial for a substantial period of time.  Jarrod noted the 464 

total charges due are $12,446.09 and said, “We would get another estimate before we’d send it 465 

through for the purchase order, and we would try to see if there is anything the Street Department 466 

can do in house.  But I think some of the cables are going to have to be put in by the people who 467 

do this.” 468 

 469 

Jarrod noted Altec has 40 hours for labor in the estimate and said an attempt will be made to see 470 

what can be done in-house. 471 

 472 

The recorded conversation ended at this point, to continue on Side B as follows. 473 

 474 

In response to a question by Ald. Pogreba, Jarrod said Altec’s service department is based in St. 475 

Joseph, Missouri. 476 

 477 

Fred noted the vehicle, which was legally parked, had moved 3 feet when it was struck. 478 
 479 

Jarrod noted the $5,000 that had been budgeted for a welder could be utilized for repairing the 480 

bucket truck.  Jarrod said he and Fred will examine the purchases for the Street Department and 481 

noted Fred has designated funds from previous years where the city has come in under budget on 482 

equipment purchases.  Part of this could be utilized to offset the cost. 483 
 484 

Jarrod said, “This is one vehicle I would say that we are fortunate enough to receive through the 485 

budgetary process.  I was somewhat skeptical on how much it would get used, and it gets used a 486 

lot – more than you can imagine.” 487 
 488 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to approve the repairs to the bucket truck in 489 

an amount not to exceed $12,446.09. 490 
 491 

Jarrod estimated that the truck, which is a 2001 model, will serve the city for at least another 10 492 

years. 493 
 494 

On voice vote, motion carried. 495 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
13 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

 496 

Item 11 – Review and consideration of pump repairs at Well #7 and #8 497 

 498 

Jarrod noted the three-page report he has distributed this evening had been received Monday 499 

from Municipal Well & Pump.  Jarrod noted there had been vibrations in the well at Well #7 and 500 

noted the pump bowl bolts had sheared through due to deterioration.  Jarrod said the pump needs 501 

to be repaired, noting it is the original pump from the 1972 well that was installed and it is not 502 

possible to locate parts.  Jarrod said he believes it is essential to perform video logging so the 503 

condition of the well screen and the well column may be determined.  Jarrod noted the cost of 504 

removing the pump and installing a refurbished pump is $9,850.  Jarrod said he is proposing to 505 

replace several parts, including the installation of a new four-stage bowl assembly at a cost of 506 

$7,470, and a new transducer at a cost of $1,125.  The total sum of the parts for Well #7 is 507 

$12,812, bringing the total to $23,312. 508 

 509 

Jarrod said, “In my opinion we have to do Well #7.  We really have no choice.  It’s 510 

decommissioned right now and it has to be put back together.  We were relatively surprised that 511 

the pump price was reasonable.” 512 

 513 

Jarrod noted that both Well #7 and Well #8 had been pulled in 2008 and questioned whether the 514 

pump in Well #8 should be pulled at the same time.  Jarrod said he believes the pump in Well #8 515 

is in the maintenance cycle where it should be pulled.  Jarrod said the well pump at Well #8 was 516 

replaced in 2008 and noted Municipal Well & Pump would rebuild it at a cost of $1,600.  Jarrod 517 

noted the transducers are not functioning either at Well #7 or Well #8 and said Municipal Well & 518 

Pump would install new transducers.  Jarrod said a majority of the cost is to remove the pumps 519 

and noted Municipal Well & Pump would deduct $1,000 for removing both pumps at the same 520 

time. 521 

 522 

In response to a question by Ald. Bialecki, Fred said the funding would originate from Reserve 523 

from Replacement, noting $25,000 is set aside each year. 524 

 525 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to proceed with the required pump repairs at 526 

both Well #7 and Well #8. 527 

 528 

On voice vote, motion carried. 529 

 530 

Item 12 – Review and consideration of professional engineering services for design of iron 531 

and manganese removal facility at Well #9 532 

 533 

Jarrod noted Well #9 was installed in 1987, and that the city began adding phosphates to the 534 

water system in 1991 in an attempt to sequester the iron and manganese originating from the 535 

well.  Jarrod said that over the last decade the city has performed operations such as acid 536 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
14 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

bursting, air bursting and acid cleaning in an attempt to help the well function more efficiently.  537 

However, Jarrod said the only viable option is to treat the water.  Jarrod noted no phosphates 538 

have been added since the start of 2013 and said the city seldom operates Well #9 because the 539 

amount of iron and manganese increases with extensive usage.  Jarrod said SEH had performed a 540 

water study, and it was determined that it would be necessary to construct a new structure around 541 

the well column.  The new structure would have iron and manganese removal and new controls, 542 

and the estimated cost would be $2.25 million.  Jarrod noted SEH also had performed pilot 543 

testing and said he has an understanding of what treatment processes are needed to improve the 544 

water quality originating from Well #9.  Jarrod said the water study also presented two options: 545 

 546 

• Abandoning Well #9 and drilling a new well further east toward Theater Road.  However, 547 

the water quality would be the same and would need to be treated. 548 

• Constructing another well in the northern part of the community where the city’s three 549 

other wells are located.  However, there is an unconfined aquifer and the city will face a 550 

significant challenge if there is contamination in the area.  In addition, it is difficult for 551 

the city’s system to transport water to the State Trunk Highway 16 area with the wells on 552 

the northern end of the city.  Jarrod said the city would gain hydraulically by placing the 553 

well on the north side of the city. 554 

 555 

Jarrod said, “Looking at all those options and looking at the future, we really feel we need the 556 

fourth well for our supply and capacity for the next 20 years.  I really feel the best option is to 557 

keep what we have, but treat that water.” 558 

 559 

Jarrod noted $200,000 had been included in the Capital Improvements Budget to begin the 560 

design process of the facility.  Jarrod said SEH’s first task is a conceptual preliminary design 561 

layout and noted the city would have a more firm estimated cost of the project.  The city also 562 

would have a budget impact.  The city would expend the first engineering costs and would know 563 

the building’s size and layout, and there would be a firm engineer’s estimate for the cost.  Jarrod 564 

said it then would be necessary to determine how the city’s rates would be affected. 565 

 566 

Jarrod said, “The way the proposal is set up we would actually do the first task and come back 567 

through the Board of Public Works and the Council once we know the design and get those 568 

answers.  Then we would make a firm decision on whether we want to go ahead and spend the 569 

other part of the design and go ahead bidding out the project.  So even if we approved the design 570 

engineering services this doesn’t mean that we’re necessarily going to build the whole project.  571 

You are making a significant commitment monetarily to get to the next point in design where 572 

we’d know the exact costs and make those decisions.” 573 

 574 

Jarrod noted SEH has performed extensive water work for the city in recent years and asked 575 

board members if they want him to seek out three proposals as SEH’s proposal is a large 576 

financial investment. 577 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
15 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

 578 

Ald. Bialecki stated his preference for bidding out the project even though he has the utmost 579 

respect for SEH. 580 

 581 

Jarrod said he would like to request that the city request proposals from three engineering firms.  582 

The proposals would be scored and brought before the Board of Public Works for examination.  583 

Jarrod estimated the process would take two months and said a recommendation could be made 584 

either at the March 4 or April 1 Board of Public Works meeting. 585 

 586 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Jarrod, to authorize City Engineer Jarrod Holter to obtain 587 

three Requests for Proposal for the purpose of providing professional engineering services for 588 

design of iron and manganese removal facility at Well #9. 589 

 590 

On voice vote, motion carried. 591 

 592 

Item 13 – Review and consideration of change order number one for 2013 Sand Lake Road 593 

project 594 

 595 

This change order is for the extension of a storm sewer pipe that was not included within the bid. 596 

 597 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to approve change order number one for 598 

2013 Sand Lake Road project at a cost of $2,324. 599 

 600 

On voice vote, motion carried. 601 

 602 

Item 14 – Pay Estimates:  Strand Associates, Short Elliot Hendrickson Inc., MSA 603 

Professional Services, Inc., Mathy Construction, Haas Sons, Winona Mechanical, A-1 604 

Excavating, Wapasha Construction, State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation and 605 

any other contractor/developer  606 

 607 

 608 

 609 

 610 

 611 

 612 

 613 

 614 

 615 

 616 

 617 

 618 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
16 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS 619 

MONTHLY ESTIMATES 620 

 621 

January 7, 2014 622 

 623 

    Original 624 

    Contract   Change   Paid to  Due this 625 

Contractor   Amount   Orders   Date   Estimate 626 

 627 

1.  STRAND ASSOCIATES (01321) 628 

     Storm Lift 629 

     Electrical troubleshooting 630 

     Estimate #2  $   -     $     -       $   662.69  $ 747.73 631 

 632 

2.  STRAND ASSOCIATES (01321) 633 

     Pond 17 Dredging 634 

     Design 635 

     Estimate #8  $   14,500.00   $     10,000.00     $   22,090.00 $   2,410.00 636 

 637 

3.  SEH INC. (01375) 638 

     Private Watermain Loop 639 

     Design 640 

     Estimate #6  $   16,000.00   $     -          $   13,453.58  $  1,601.31 641 

 642 

4.  SEH INC. 643 

     Solid Waste Public Education 644 

     and Outreach 645 

     Estimate #3  $   7,000.00   $     -       $   2,800.00  $   840.00 646 

 647 

5.  AYRES ASSOCIATES (02632) 648 

     I-90 Sanitary Sewer 649 

     Design 650 

     Estimate #6   $   35,000.00   $     -       $   26,660.22  $   3,605.05 651 

 652 

6.  SEH INC. (01375) 653 

     Old City Shop Environmental 654 

     Sample Collection & Wis. DNR 655 

     Estimate #3  $   9,900.00   $     -          $   4,701.73  $   480.85 656 

 657 

7.  LA CROSSE BACKHOE SERVICE INC. 658 

     Theater Rd. Traffic Signal 659 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
17 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

     Midwest Drive 660 

     Estimate #1  $   -     $     -          $   -   $   15,153.50 661 

 662 

8.  HAAS SONS INC. (01167) 663 

     2013 Sand Lake Rd. 664 

     Sidewalk Project 665 

     Construction 666 

     Estimate #5 – FINAL $   372,923.00   $     -          $   301,478.75  $   47,393.46 667 

 668 

9.  HAAS SONS INC. (01167) 669 

     2013 Utility Project 670 

     Construction 671 

     Estimate #6  $   1,073,982.25   $     17,721.53     $   960,323.18 $   110,554.48 672 

 673 

10.  SEH INC. (01375) 674 

     Water System Evaluation 675 

     Construction 676 

     Estimate #8  $   30,000.00   $     -          $   27,918.03  $   2,081.97 677 

 678 

11.  MSA (01748) 679 

     Safe Routes to School 680 

     Construction/Engineering 681 

     Estimate #3  $   5,000.00   $     -          $   3,952.44  $   896.26 682 

 683 

12.  MATHY CONSTRUCTION 684 

     2013 Pavement Project 685 

     Construction 686 

     Estimate #5 – FINAL $   346,718.50   $     -          $   297,926.19  $   24,914.79 687 

 688 

13.  STATE OF WI – DOT  689 

     STH 35 – 2nd Ave SW to Poplar St. 690 

     Enhancement Project – Construction 691 

     (5991-02-52) 692 

     Estimate #5  $  269,406.00   $     -          $   180,063.63  $   78.38 693 

 694 

14.  STATE OF WI – DOT  695 

     STH 35 / Main St. – Bicycle 696 

     Enhancement Design 697 

     (5991-02-49) 698 

     Estimate #4  $  24,040.00   $     -          $   488.32  $   201.98 699 

 700 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
18 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

15.  STATE OF WI – DOT  701 

     2nd Ave / STH 35 – Design 702 

     (7190-05-00) 703 

     Estimate #22  $  125,000.00   $     50,000.00        $   176,433.87 $   1,305.01 704 

 705 

16.  STATE OF WI – DOT  706 

     STH 35 – 2nd Ave. SW to Poplar St. 707 

     Community Sensitive Design / 708 

     Lighting Match – Construction 709 

     (7190-05-71) 710 

     Estimate #2  $  50,176.00   $     -          $   33,794.64  $   5,893.08 711 

 712 

17.  STATE OF WI – DOT  $1,874,345.00 (Bid) 713 

     Sand Lake Rd. / CTH S + 25,000 (Project Change Orders) 714 

     Construction  ======================= 715 

    (5991-02-21)  - 1,121,134.00 (STP Grant) 716 

    = 778,211.00 (Total) 717 

                                               ========================= 718 

    + 200,000.00 (Constr. Engineering) 719 

    _____________________________ 720 

    $ 978,211.00 721 

    + 25,000.00 (Utilities) 722 

    ____________________ 723 

     Estimate #9  $  1,003,211.00    $     -        $   974,940.03 $   2,380.73 724 

 725 

18. STRUPP TRUCKING INC 726 

     Elm Street Outfall Repairs 727 

     Construction 728 

     Estimate #1 – FINAL $   2,850.00     $     -          $   -  $   2,850.00 729 

 730 

Motion by Ald. Bialecki, second by Mayor Chilsen, to pay the 18 estimates as printed and on 731 

file. 732 

 733 

On voice vote, motion carried. 734 

 735 

 736 

 737 

 738 

 739 

 740 

 741 



Board of Public Works 

of the City of Onalaska 

Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
19 

Reviewed 1/10/14 

 

Adjournment  742 

 743 

Motion by Mayor Chilsen, second by Ald. Bialecki, to adjourn at 7:47 p.m. 744 

 745 

On voice vote, motion carried. 746 

 747 

 748 

Recorded by: 749 

 750 

Kirk Bey 751 


